
PZC Meeting – January 19, 2023        Page 1 of 2  

Scott Shelburne, Chairman    City Administrator/Interim City Secretary, Don Doering 
Anne Sundquist, Vice Chairman       City Attorney, Leonard Schneider 
Josh Jakubik, Secretary     City Engineer, Mike Kurzy 
Trevor Brown   Planning Coordinator, Christian Gable 
Holly Knee 
Tom Mayhew 
Robert Barker III 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 THURSDAY, JANUARY 19, 2023 - 4:30 P.M. 
Sewall Smith Council Chambers 

18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

1. CALL TO ORDER
a. INVOCATION
b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
c. ROLL CALL AND CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM

2. CONSENT AGENDA
This portion of the agenda consists of items considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion
unless separate discussion is requested by a Commission member or a citizen.
a. CONSIDERATION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Consideration and possible action to approve the minutes of the meeting held
December 15, 2022.

3. CITIZENS COMMENTS, REQUESTS OR PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
(This agenda item provides an opportunity for citizens to address the City Council on any matter not on
the agenda).
Comments shall be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Comments by the governing body shall be limited to:
a. Statements of specific factual information given in response to an inquiry;
b. A recitation of existing policy in response to an inquiry;
c. A proposal to place the subject on a future agenda.

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS
(Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Board Members of the Planning
Commission and City Staff for which no action will be taken or discussed.)

5. UPDATE ON CITY OF MAGNOLIA DEVELOPMENTS (Staff)



PZC Meeting – January 19, 2023               Page 2 of 2  

6. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO REVIEW AND APPROVE ASCEND AT 
MAGNOLIA PLACE, PRELIMINARY PLAT, +/- 11.233 ACRES. 
 

 
7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
 
8. ADJOURN 

 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Magnolia, Texas, reserves the right to adjourn into Closed Executive Session at any time 
during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government 
Code. 551.071(Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and 
Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), 551.086 (Deliberations about competitive 
matters), and 551.087 (Deliberation about Economic Development Matters). 
Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services are requested 
to contact the City Secretary’s office at (281-305-0550), two working days prior to the meeting for appropriate 
arrangements. 

 

CERTIFICATE 
I certify that a copy of the Notice of Meeting was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website, www.cityofmagnolia.com, in compliance with Chapter 
551, Texas Government Code. 
DATE    
TIME   
TAKEN DOWN    

 
 

Christian Gable, Asst. Interim City Secretary 

http://www.cityofmagnolia.com/


 

 
Scott Shelburne, Chairman City Administrator, Don Doering 
Anne Sundquist, Vice Chairman City Secretary, Kandice Garrett 
Josh Jakubik, Secretary                                                                                                         City Attorney, Leonard  Schneider 
Trevor Brown                                                                                                                             Urban Planner, Cristin Emshoff 
Holly Knee Planning Coordinator, Christian Gable 
Tom Mayhew Robert 
Barker III 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission was held on December 15, 2022, beginning at 4:30 p.m. in 
the Sewall Smith City Council Chambers located at 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Scott Shelburne called the regular meeting to order at 4:42 p.m. 
 
a. INVOCATION 

Chairman Scott Shelburne delivered the invocation. 
 

b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Chairman Scott Shelburne led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

c. ROLL CALL AND CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 
Chairman Scott Shelburne called roll and certified a quorum present with the following Planning 
& Zoning Commission members in attendance: Scott Shelburne, Trevor Brown, Holly Knee, 
and Robert Barker III. 

 
Absent: Anne Sundquist, Josh Jakubik, and Tom Mayhew. 
 
Staff Present: City Administrator Don Doering, City Secretary Kandice Garrett, Planning 
Coordinator Christian Gable, and Finance Administrator Beverly Standley. 

 
 

2. OPEN PUBLIC HEARING 
Chairman Scott Shelburne opened the Public Hearing at 4:44 p.m., read the Notice of Public 
Hearing aloud and asked for any public comments. 

 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE OF TEMPORARY MORATORIUM AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE 
IMPOSITION OF A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON THE ACCEPTANCE, AUTHORIZATION, 
AND APPROVALS NECESSARY FOR THE SUBDIVISION, SITE PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT, 
PROPERDEVELOPMENT, OR CONSTRUCTION IN THE CITY LIMITS AND 
EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION OF THE CITY OF MAGNOLIA, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, 
TEXAS, UNDER CHAPTER 212, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE. 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 15, 2022 



 

 
Effective Friday, December 16, 2022, a temporary moratorium is in effect on the acceptance, 
authorization, and approvals necessary for the subdivision, site planning, property development, 
including residential and commercial property development or construction in the City limits and 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction for new projects. During the Temporary Moratorium, no department of 
the City will accept applications or plans for development for permits, plats, verifications, rezonings, 
site plans, or new or revised certificates of occupancy where an exception or waiver has not been 
approved. 

 
City residents and affected parties are encouraged to provide input on whether a continuing 
Moratorium shall be imposed prior to the expiration of this Temporary Moratorium. The Second 
Public hearing and a Special City Council Meeting will be held on the following dates and times: 
 
Hearing 2: Planning and Zoning Commission, Thursday, December 15, 2022 at 4:30pm 
Council Meeting: City Council, Wednesday, December 21, 2022 at 7:00pm 

 
All public hearings will be conducted in the Council Chambers located at the Sewell Smith Council 
Chambers, located at 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd, Magnolia, Texas for all persons interested in the 
above proposed moratorium. At such time and place, all such persons shall have the right to 
appear and be heard. All persons interested in this moratorium and matters in relation thereto shall 
take notice of the date and time of said hearings. 

 
The City conducted an analysis to determine the adequacy of the City’s current regional water 
facilities and the need beyond the estimated capacity that is expected to result from new property 
development. The City has been provided certain findings related to the inadequacy of the existing 
water facilities to prevent a shortage of essential public facilities. The Temporary Moratorium is 
necessary to maintain the status quo and suspend further development during a period while the 
City receives public input on whether a continuing moratorium should be imposed. 
 
This Temporary Moratorium shall remain in force until the date the City Council adopts an 
ordinance imposing a continuing Moratorium in accordance with law, or December 21, 2022, 
whichever is the earlier. 

 
This Temporary Moratorium does not affect rights acquired under Texas Local Government Code 
Chapter 245 or the common law. The Temporary Moratorium does not affect Projects that do not 
impact the City’s water capacity. 

 
The City of Magnolia has imposed this Temporary Moratorium and is considering a continuing 
Moratorium under authority granted by Chapter 212, Subchapter E, of the Texas Local Government 
Code. Persons with questions, comments and concerns about the Temporary Moratorium may 
contact the following email: moratorium@cityofmagnolia.com. 
 
City Attorney Leonard Schneider spoke to inform the Commissioners that item #9 is not applicable as 
Planning & Zoning only has the power to recommend to City Council as already stated in item #4. He 
continued to give a presentation explaining the purpose of a temporary building moratorium, our current 
capacity in accordance with City Engineer statistics, and a breakdown of the City’s current progress and 
planned actions to increase water capacity. 
 
Unnamed members of the public requested transparency of City allocation for existing connections. 
 
 
Urban Planner Cristin Emshoff, representing AEI Engineering, spoke to confirm City Engineer statistics and 

mailto:moratorium@cityofmagnolia.com


 

the City’s interest in more potential water well sites. 
 
Nate Newman, representing BBQ Equity Partners with the Magnolia Village development, offered the idea of 
a well site within his developing property. 
 
Urban Planner Cristin Emshoff informed that the City is also in the process of planning a new wastewater 
treatment plant. 
 
Brian Gibson with Lennar Homes recommended temporary solution research for a sooner resolution to 
water shortage during well construction. 
 
City Administrator Don Doering reminded the public of the Stage 2 Water Use Restrictions that will remain in 
place during the Temporary Building Moratorium.  
 
3. CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING AND CONVENE REGULAR MEETING 

Chairman Scott Shelburne closed the Public Hearing and convened the Regular Meeting at 5:31 
p.m.  
 

4. Discussion and recommendation on an Ordinance of the City of Magnolia, Texas 
(“City”) enacting a temporary moratorium on the acceptance, authorization, and 
approvals necessary for the subdivision, site planning, development, and 
construction in the city limits and extraterritorial jurisdiction, providing for findings 
of fact, definitions, applicability, purpose, enactment, duration, extension, 
exceptions and exemptions, determination and appeals, repeals, severability, 
enforcement, effective date, and proper notice and meeting. 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion to recommend the Ordinance to enact a temporary moratorium 
   made by Holly Knee and seconded by Trevor Brown, the Commission members  
  voted and the motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
This portion of the agenda consists of items considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion unless 
separate discussion is requested by a Commission member or a citizen. 

 

a. CONSIDERATION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Consideration and possible action to approve the minutes of the meeting held November 17, 
2022. 
 

MOTION: Upon a motion to approve Consent Agenda made by Robert Barker III and  
  seconded by Holly Knee, the Commission members voted and the motion carried  
  unanimously, 4-0. 
 

 
6. CITIZENS COMMENTS, REQUESTS OR PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 

(This agenda item provides an opportunity for citizens to address the Planning & Zoning Commission on any 
matter not on the agenda). 
Comments shall be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Comments by the governing body shall be limited to: 
b. Statements of specific factual information given in response to an inquiry; 
c. A recitation of existing policy in response to an inquiry; 
d. A proposal to place the subject on a future agenda. 

 
   None 

 



 

7. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
(Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Board Members of the Planning 
Commission and City Staff for which no action will be taken or discussed.) 
None 

 
8. UPDATE ON CITY OF MAGNOLIA DEVELOPMENTS (Staff) 
 Planning Coordinator Christian Gable explained that the only new development since last month’s 

report is a commercial buildout for GoHealth Urgent Care in the Magnolia Place development. 
 

 
9. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE A TEMPORARY 

MORATORIUM ON THE ACCEPTANCE, AUTHORIZATION, AND APPROVALS 
NECESSARY FOR THE SUBDIVISION, SITE PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT, 
PROPERDEVELOPMENT, OR CONSTRUCTION IN THE CITY LIMITS AND 
EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION OF THE CITY OF MAGNOLIA, MONTGOMERY 
COUNTY, TEXAS, UNDER CHAPTER 212, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE. 
No action was taken, per City Engineer’s confirmation that this item is redundant to Item #4 and 
not the duty of the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

 
10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

None 
 

11. ADJOURN 
  
MOTION:  Upon a motion to adjourn made by Robert Barker III and seconded by Trevor  
  Brown, the Commission members voted, the motion carried unanimously, 4-0 and  
  Chairman Shelburne adjourned the meeting at 5:36 p.m. 
 
 
 
        Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
 
        ___________________________ 
        Scott Shelburne, Chairman 
 
 
 
        CERTIFICATION 
I certify this to be a true and correct copy of the minutes of the meeting of the City of Magnolia Planning and 
Zoning Commission held on December 15, 2022. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Christian Gable, Asst. Interim City Secretary 
 
 
12/30/2022____ 
Date 
  



 

January 10, 2023 

Mr. Don Doering 

City Administrator 

City of Magnolia 

18111 Buddy Riley Boulevard 

Magnolia, Texas 77354 

Reference: Ascend at Magnolia Place Preliminary Plat– Letter of No Objection 

  City of Magnolia  

AEI Job No. 222609.80-001 

Dear Mr. Doering: 

We received the preliminary plat for the proposed Ascend at Magnolia Place Preliminary Plat on 

January 9, 2023. On behalf of City of Magnolia (the “City”), we have reviewed the submitted 

documents and offer no objection to the approval of this project, subject to the following comments: 

1. With the final plat submittal, provide evidence that the water, sanitary, drainage and 

pavement plans have been approved and provide easements on plat. 

2. With the final plat submittal, provide the approved master covenants by the City Attorney 

per Section 5-1-3.02, Required Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CCRs) in the Unified 

Development Code.  

3. With the final plat submittal, provide an updated City Planning Letter. 

4. If any portion of this development may change at a future date, the City reserves the right to 

review and approve the proposed changes before initiating the change.  

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact the undersigned or 

Michael A. Kurzy, P.E. at (281) 350-7027.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Cristin Emshoff, MUP, ENV SP 

Urban Planner  

 

AEI Engineering, a Baxter & Woodman Company 

TBPELS Registration No. F-21783 

 

XC: Ms. Christian Gable – City of Magnolia – Planning Coordinator 

Mr. Michael A. Kurzy, P.E. – AEI Engineering, a Baxter & Woodman Company 

Ms. Cristin Emshoff, MUP, ENV SP - AEI Engineering, a Baxter & Woodman Company 

Mr. Robel E. Giackero, P.E. – AEI Engineering, a Baxter & Woodman Company 



1 

 

Preliminary Plat Application Form 

This form shall be submitted with each application for a preliminary plat. 
 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Applicant Property Owner (if different) 

 

 

Name Name 

 

 

Street Address Street Address 

 

 

City, State Zip City, State Zip 

 

 

Phone Phone 

 

 

Fax Fax 

 

 

E-mail E-mail 

 
Architect (if different) Engineer/Land Surveyor (if different) 

 

 

Name Name 

 

 

Street Address Street Address 

 

 

City, State Zip City, State Zip 

 

 

Phone Phone 

 

 

Fax Fax 

 

 

E-mail E-mail 

WLMorales
Ellipse

WLMorales
Text Box
*Owner listed represents end user for site



2 

 
 

PROPERTY PROFILE 

 
Property ID #    

 

 

Legal Description    

(Subdivision) (Lot)  (Block) 

Current Zoning     

Present Use of Property 
 

 

 

Proposed Use of the Property 
 

 

 

Total Area of Site 
 

 

 
 

1. Description of existing property. If the property has been previously subdivided, provide the lot(s), 

block(s), and subdivision name. If the property has been subdivided, provide the metes and bounds 

description: 
 

 

 

2. Description of proposed property change, including lot numbers, name, etc. 
 

 

 

WLMorales
Text Box
LOCATED IN THE J.B. RICHARDS SURVEY, A-449, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS



 

5 

 

 

 
I,  (print or type name), certify with my signature below that the 

information included in my submittal packet is complete, true, and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

 

 

 

Signature of Applicant Date 



UP

UP

UP

UP

12'

8
'

WMB

WMB

B

4

A

3

C

5C

1

B

2

LEASING/CLUB

POOL/ COURTYARD

EM

EM

EM

EM

FSRR

FSRR

FSRR

EM
FSRR

EM

FSRR

EM

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

1
0

 ' 
B

U
F

F
E

R

10 ' BUFFER

1
0

 ' 
B

U
F

F
E

R

20 ' BUFFER

EM

EMEM

MAIN ENTRYSECONDRY ENTRY

EM

EM

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT 

DATE 

4
5
9

5
 E

xc
e
l 
P

k
w

y 
A

d
d
is

o
n
, 

T
X

 7
5
0
0
1

 

2
1
4

.5
2
0
.8

8
7
8
 

h
e
d
k
.c

o
m

 

REVISIONS  

R
E

V
IE

W
 P

R
IN

T
S

 N
O

T
 T

O
B

E
 U

S
E

D
 F

O
R

 
R

E
G

U
L
A

T
O

R
Y

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L
, 

P
E

R
M

IT
, 

O
R

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

  
  
 B

G
O

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

 A
L
L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

c

11/29/2022

2
8
3
 A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 U
N

IT
S

 I
N

  
M

A
G

N
O

L
IA

, 
T

X

DH
I M

AG
NO

LIA

D
H

I C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S

A1− 01

22174

SITE PLAN

11/29/2022

1" = 40'-0"1 SITE PLAN



SP
U

R
 1

49

FM
 149

FM
1488

R
ED

 C
R

EEK

JORDAN LEWIS

FM

1488SITE

” ” ” ”
” ”

”

”

”
” ” ”

” ”
”

”

6744 HORTON VISTA DR., SUITE 100
RICHMOND, TX 77407

TBPE REG. NO. F-19561

LJA Surveying, Inc.
3600 W. Sam Houston Parkway S.             Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042               T.B.P.E.L.S. Firm No. 10194382

SHT 2

SHT 3



SP
U

R
 1

49

FM
 149

FM
1488

R
ED

 C
R

EEK

JORDAN LEWIS

FM

1488

MATCHLINE "A" - SEE SHEET 3 OF 3

SITE

6744 HORTON VISTA DR., SUITE 100
RICHMOND, TX 77407

TBPE REG. NO. F-19561

LJA Surveying, Inc.
3600 W. Sam Houston Parkway S.             Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042               T.B.P.E.L.S. Firm No. 10194382



SP
U

R
 1

49

FM
 149

FM
1488

R
ED

 C
R

EEK

JORDAN LEWIS

FM

1488

MATCHLINE "A" - SEE SHEET 2 OF 3

SITE

6744 HORTON VISTA DR., SUITE 100
RICHMOND, TX 77407

TBPE REG. NO. F-19561

LJA Surveying, Inc.
3600 W. Sam Houston Parkway S.             Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 175                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042               T.B.P.E.L.S. Firm No. 10194382


	PZC Agenda 1.19.23.pdf
	ITEM PZC Minutes 12.15.22.pdf
	ITEM - Ascend at Magnolia Place.pdf
	Ascend at Magnolia Place Prel Plat No Objection Letter 2023.01.10.pdf
	Ascend Prelim Plat App.pdf
	Ascend Prelim Plat Plan.pdf
	2023-01-09_Ascend at Magnolia Place_Prelim Plat R1.pdf


	Name: DHI Engineering, LLC (Levi Morales)
	Name (1): DHIC - Ascend at Magnolia Place, LLC (Robert Daigle)
	Text25: 6744 Horton Vista Drive, Suite 100
	Text26: Richmond, TX 77407
	Text27: 281-269-6841
	Text28: 
	Text29: wlmorales@drhorton.com
	Text30: HEDK Architects
	Text31: 4595 Excel Pkwy
	Text32: Addison, TX 75001
	Text33: 241-520-8878
	Text34: 
	Text35: cmartino@hedk.com
	Text36: 1341 Horton Circle
	Text37: Arlington, TX 76011
	Text38: 817-390-8200
	Text40: 
	Text41: radaigle@drhorton.com
	Text43: LJA Surveying, Inc.
	Text44: 3600 W. Sam Houston Pkwy S., Suite 175
	Text45: Houston, TX 77042
	Text48: 713-953-5200
	Text49: 
	Text50: gnutter@ljasurvey.com
	Property ID #: R451309
	Subdivision: 
	Lot: 
	Block: 
	Current Zoning: Semi-Urban Residential (SU)
	Present Use of Property: Undeveloped (No Structures)
	Present Use of Property (1): 
	Proposed Use of the Property: Multifamily 
	Proposed Use of the Property (1): 
	Total Area of Site: 11.233 Acres
	Total Area of Site (1): 
	description: M&B description attached.
	description (1): 
	Text39: 
	2: 
	 Description of proposed property change, including lot numbers, name, etc: Refer to plat.
	 Description of proposed property change, including lot numbers, name, etc (1): 

	Text42: 
	Text47: 12/5/2022
	Text46: William (Levi) Morales


